
 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 

 
 

Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board 
Meeting Notice and Agenda 

Members Thursday, December 7, 2017 
Vern Martin 9:00 a.m. 
Sergio Guzman  
Michael Chaump  
David DeMars Washoe County Administration Complex, Building B 
Jerry Montoya Health District South Conference Room 
J.P. Pinocchio 1001 East Ninth Street 
Christopher Romm Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken. 
9:00 a.m. 
1. Selection of a Board Chairman for this Hearing – (For possible action) 
2. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

3. *Pledge of Allegiance 

4. *Public Comment 
Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

5. Approval of Agenda – (For possible action) 
December 7, 2017 

6. Approval of Draft Minutes – (For possible action) 
November 2, 2016 

7. Staff’s Recommendation for Approval of Variance Case No. 1-17FP Pignic Pub & Patio 
Application for Variance to Sections 200.055(B)(Outdoor food establishment, food 
preparation by consumer), 200.055(E) )(Outdoor food establishment, food preparation 
by consumer), and 060.205(A)(Food equipment, certification and classification) of the 
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food 
Establishments. - (For possible action) 
Staff Representative:  David McNinch 

8. *Board Comment 
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 

9. *Public Comment 



 
December 7, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Agenda   Page 2 of 2 

Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action 
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is 
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. 

10. Adjournment – (For possible action) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing.  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, 
withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may 
be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  
Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless 
withdrawn from the Consent agenda. 

Special Accommodations. The Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled 
members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative 
Health Services in writing at the Washoe County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 
775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

Public Comment.  During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda, 
to include items to be heard on consent.  For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that 
are not marked with an asterisk (*).  Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and 
must be about the specific item being considered by the Board.  In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must 
fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary.  Public comment  for 
individual agenda items are limited as follows: three minutes for individual speakers. . 

Response to Public Comment. The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website.  

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV 
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials. Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County 
Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, Nevada.  Ms. Laura Rogers, Administrative Secretary to the District Board 
of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting 
materials.  Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by 
email at lrogers@washoecounty.us.  Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website 
www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:lrogers@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


 

 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

 
 

WASHOE COUNTY 
FOOD PROTECTION HEARING AND ADVISORY BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 
Members Wednesday, November 2, 2016 
Michael Chaump 10:00 a.m. 
David DeMars  
Sergio Guzman, Vice Chair Washoe County Administration Complex 
Vern Martin, Chair Health District South Conference Room 
Jerry Montoya 1001 East Ninth Street 
J.P. Pinocchio Reno, NV 
Christopher Romm    
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

10:24 a.m. Determined quorum was not present.  Subject of hearing was also not present. 
1. *Roll Call  

The following members and staff were present: 

Members present: Sergio Guzman 
Christopher Romm 
Vern Martin 
 

Members absent: Michael Chaump 
David DeMars 
Jerry Montoya 
J.P. Pinocchio 

 
Staff present: Nate Edwards, Deputy District Attorney 

Tony Macaluso, Supervisor, EHS 
Amber English, Senior Environmental Health Specialist, EHS 
Dianna Karlicek, Environmental Health Specialist Trainee, EHS 
Mike Touhey, Environmental Health Specialist Trainee, EHS 
Matt Christensen, Environmental Health Specialist Trainee, EHS 
Paula Valentin, Administrative Assistant/Recording Secretary, EHS 

2. *Public Comment 

None. 
4. Approval of agenda by Chair 

The Board moved to approve the agenda for November 2, 2016.  The motion passed 
five in favor and none against.  



 
March 5, 2015 Food Protection Hearing and Safety Board   Page 2 of 2 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

  

Tony Macaluso  
Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor 
 

Secretary to the Food Protection Hearing Advisory Board 

  

Paula Valentin, Administrative Assistant 
Recording Secretary to the Food Protection Hearing 
Advisory Board 

 

 

Approved by Board in session on _________________, 2016. 
 

 



 

 
Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
Environmental Health Services Office: 775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176  I   
washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 

 
TO: Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board 
 
FROM: David McNinch, RHES, Environmental Health Services Division  
 (775) 328-2645, dmcninch@washoecounty.us  
 
SUBJECT: Pignic Pub & Patio 

Staff’s Recommendation for Approval of Variance Case No. 1-17FP Pignic Pub 
& Patio Application for Variance to Sections 200.055(B)(Outdoor food 
establishment, food preparation by consumer), 200.055(E)(Outdoor food 
establishment, food preparation by consumer), and 060.205(A)(Food equipment, 
certification and classification) of the Regulations of the Washoe County District 
Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. 

 
Authority to hold hearing on variance requests: 
Pursuant to Section 240.085 of the regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health 
Governing Food Establishments, the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board shall hold 
hearings to consider variance requests to any section of the regulations. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Healthy Environment – Create 
a healthier environment that allows people to safely enjoy everything Washoe County has to 
offer. 

Previous Action: 
On October 9, 2014, Washoe County Health District (WCHD) staff issued a permit to operate a 
restaurant for Pignic Pub & Patio located at 235 Flint Street in Reno.  It was noted during the 
permit issuance that Pignic Pub & Patio intended to conduct all cooking outdoors on grills and 
one electric range as well as allow patrons to bring and cook their own food.  Aside from 
requiring that the Certified Food Protection Manager (CFPM) provide assistance to patrons on 
temperature cooking requirements and advise of safe food handling and monitoring of 
equipment, the WCHD did not stipulate any other conditions to ensure protection of the public’s 
health. 
On May 14, 2015, WCHD staff conducted an annual routine inspection at which time a need for 
general cleaning was noted, but no critical items were observed.  Critical items are defined as 
violations that are more likely than other violations to contribute to food contamination, illness, 
or environmental health hazards. 
In June 2015, the Washoe County District Board of Health approved a comprehensive revision 
of their regulations governing food establishments which included requirements that operators 
submit operational plans for certain activities such as barbecuing and special processes.  New 
provisions also provided for conducting certain outdoor foodservice activities without having to 
meet standard “brick and mortar” construction requirements or having to routinely obtain 

DD___________ 
DHO__________ 
DA___________ 
Risk__________ 

mailto:dmcninch@washoecounty.us


Subject: Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting  
Date: December 7, 2017 
Page 2 of 5 
 
temporary food permits.  While these provisions became effective in June 2015, the WCHD has 
systematically addressed compliance, including operational plan submittal requirements, during 
permit issuance (new facilities) and annual routine inspections (existing facilities). 
On June 15, 2016, WCHD staff conducted an annual routine inspection at which time several 
violations were noted including two (2) critical items.  It was also documented that no CFPM’s 
were on-site at the time of the inspection.  As a Risk Level III food establishment (i.e. the facility 
presents a significant relative risk of causing foodborne disease based on their food handling 
operations typically implicated in foodborne disease outbreaks), Pignic Pub & Patio is required 
to have a CFPM on-site at all times the facility is in operation.  A re-inspection conducted June 
23, 2016 validated that all items noted during the June 15, 2016 routine inspection had been 
corrected. 
On February 1, 2017, WCHD staff conducted a site visit based on information that the facility 
was hosting a weekly event that included customers bringing food to share with other customers 
(i.e. potlucks).  Because foods prepared in a private home and served at a food establishment are 
not considered to be from an approved source, Pignic Pub & Patio was issued a notice to cease 
and desist all potluck related activities at the facility.  Subsequent to the notice, Pignic Pub & 
Patio advertised a “Valentine’s Day Edition Spaghetti Potluck” that included side dishes 
provided by guests.  WCHD staff conducted a second site visit on February 13, 2017 and 
informed the operator that the notice to cease and desist all potluck related activities at the 
facility was still in effect.  At the time of the second site visit, staff also addressed proper service 
of “communal” foods which were being prepared by Pignic Pub & Patio and provided to 
customers.  Specifically, staff required that all foods being served communally be accompanied 
by tongs, toothpicks, spoons, etc. to prevent potential cross-contamination by customers serving 
themselves. 
On February 14, 2017, WCHD staff conducted a site visit to validate compliance with the notice 
to cease and desist issued on February 1, 2017.  Pignic Pub & Patio was noted as being 
compliant with the notice to cease and desist; however, staff observed bare hand contact with 
ready-to-eat foods (employees were chopping lettuce with bare hands) which is a critical item. 
On February 23, 2017, WCHD staff conducted an annual routine inspection at which time 
several violations were noted including three (3) critical items that were required to be corrected 
on-site in order for Pignic Pub & Patio to remain in operation.  In addition, 17 non-critical items 
were noted as being out of compliance including repeat violations from previous inspections 
(e.g. no CFPM on-site).  Pictures from that inspection are included in the packet.  Pignic Pub & 
Patio was also issued a notice to cease and desist outside barbecuing activities until such time as 
they had an approved operational plan. 
On March 14, 2017, WCHD staff conducted a re-inspection and noted that several items from 
the February 23, 2017 inspection had not been corrected. 
On March 27, 2017, WCHD staff conducted a second re-inspection (fee assessed) and noted that 
several items noted from the February 23, 2017 inspection had still not been corrected.  The 
permit was suspended pending correction of all noted violations. 
On April 13, 2017, WCHD staff conducted a third re-inspection (fee assessed) and noted that 
most of the remaining non-critical items had been corrected.  The permit was reinstated with the 
requirement to correct the remaining items by April 20, 2017.  WCHD staff also reiterated the 
continuation of the cease and desist notice regarding outdoor barbecuing activities, and required 
them to submit an operational plan. 



Subject: Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting  
Date: December 7, 2017 
Page 3 of 5 
 
On October 8, 2017, WCHD staff conducted an inspection for Rawbry, a business specializing in 
juices, who had obtained a temporary food permit to operate at an event at the Pignic Pub & 
Patio.  During the inspection, it was noted that Pignic Pub & Patio was conducting barbecuing 
activities in violation of the cease and desist order issued on February 1, 2017.  Due to the 
temporary food event occurring at Pignic at the time, staff completed a food safety inspection on 
Pignic’s foodservice activities and required them to retroactively obtain a temporary food permit.  
On October 10, 2017, a representative from Pignic Pub & Patio submitted the required temporary 
food application and remitted payment.  Pignic Pub & Patio was also required to apply for two 
additional temporary food permits for events planned later that week. 
On October 18, 2017, WCHD staff met with Mr. Ryan Goldhammer (owner of Pignic Pub & 
Patio) to discuss a variety of operational issues including: 

• Submittal of an operational plan for barbecuing activities; 
• Submittal of an operational plan if they wish to allow dogs on their patio area; 
• Permitting options for operating outside foodservice activities based on our 

understanding of their operations (temporary food permits or obtaining an outdoor food 
establishment permit); 

• Construction requirements based on their proposed foodservice activities; and 
• Requirements for engaging in special processes. 

On that day, Pignic Pub & Patio was also issued a notice to cease and desist cooking for 
customers on outside equipment as well as allowing customers to bring their own food to the 
food establishment for preparation, storage, and service.  A representative of Pignic Pub & Patio 
subsequently addressed the Board of Health and met with the District Health Officer.  Based on 
those communications, the District Health Officer agreed to hold the cease and desist notice 
issued October 18, 2017 in abeyance during the period that a variance was considered as long as 
both the variance was applied for, and the required operational plan was submitted, by November 
3, 2017.  Pignic Pub & Patio submitted a variance application (without payment) and an 
operational plan.  The Health District determined that both were insufficient to address the 
Health District’s concerns.  Pignic Pub & Patio was encouraged to submit a revised variance 
request and apply for the variance and they were required to submit an application for an outdoor 
food establishment.  Communications between Pignic Pub & Patio and the Environmental Health 
Services Division continued through November 14, 2017 at which time Pignic Pub & Patio was 
informed to submit and remit payment for a revised variance as well as submit an application for 
an Outdoor Food Establishment by early afternoon on Friday, November 17, 2017, in order to 
avoid enforcement action.  When Pignic Pub & Patio did not submit or remit payment for a 
revised variance application or Outdoor Food Establishment application by early Friday 
afternoon on November 17, 2017 as requested, the Health District determined that sufficient 
progress had not been made and the permit to operate the restaurant was suspended in the late 
afternoon pending submittal of written procedures that clearly define foodservice operations and 
how those operations will comply with pertinent food safety regulations.  Right after the 
suspension, a representative of Pignic Pub & Patio did submit a revised variance request and an 
application for an outdoor food establishment, but declined to remit payment at that time when 
notified that the permit suspension would remain in place until foodservice operations are clearly 
defined through approved applications (including variances) and operational plans.  Payment for 
the variance request and outdoor food establishment application was remitted on Monday, 
November 20, 2017. 



Subject: Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting  
Date: December 7, 2017 
Page 4 of 5 
 
On November 6, 2017, the WCHD was informed by the City of Reno that Pignic Pub & Patio 
had been issued a cease and desist in June 2017 for using a non-licensed bar area in the attic.  
Operation of this area as a food establishment (including as a bar) would be a violation of 
WCHD regulations since it does not currently have a permit.  During previous inspection of the 
facility, WCHD questioned the use of this area and was informed there were no keys available to 
unlock the door but that the area was office space only and that no food/beverage storage, 
service, or preparation was occurring.  It is our understanding that plans have been submitted to 
bring the area in to compliance with the City’s requirements.  The WCHD has not received an 
application to operate a second bar at Pignic Pub & Patio. 

Findings of Fact: 
Under established precedent, the Hearing Board may recommend a variance only if, after a 
hearing on due and proper notice, it determines by a preponderance of evidence the following: 

1. Can the proposed operation of the food establishment avoid endangering the health 
and safety of persons living in the Washoe County Health District, if this variance is 
granted? 
The proposed operation can be conducted in such a way as to avoid endangering the health and 
safety of persons living in or visiting the Washoe County Health District.  Consequently, the 
Health District is supportive of the variance request.  However, due to the Health District’s 
concerns with Pignic Pub & Patio’s compliance history and lack of consistent active managerial 
control, that support is predicated on the inclusion of and strict adherence to the conditions 
provided in our recommendation below.  The Health District would also like to emphasize the 
importance of foods being obtained from “approved sources”.  The Food and Drug 
Administration has identified that one of the top five (5) risk factors contributing to foodborne 
disease are foods that do not come from an “approved source”.  Furthermore, all health 
jurisdictions in the State of Nevada consider any food from an unapproved or unknown source to 
constitute a “substantial health hazard” which has the potential to cause injury to public health.  
Without appropriate controls, the public’s health is unnecessarily put at risk. 

2. Would compliance to these Regulations produce a hardship on the applicant 
without equal or greater benefit to the public? 
The applicant has indicated that compliance with the Regulations would require deviation from 
their original business model which would create significant hardship.  While the Health District 
believes compliance with the Regulations provides benefit to the public, approval of the variance 
and recommended conditions and strict adherence to those conditions will provide an equal 
benefit. 

3. Will the owners of property in the general vicinity of the food establishment be 
adversely affected if this variance is approved? 
The owners of property in the general vicinity will not be adversely affected if this variance is 
approved. 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board advise the District Health Officer to grant the variance.  Staff 
also recommends that the variance be contingent on strict adherence to the following conditions: 

1. All foods brought in by customers shall be: 
a. In original packaging; 
b. In sound condition with no evidence of temperature abuse or mishandling; and 



Subject: Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting  
Date: December 7, 2017 
Page 5 of 5 
 

c. Within their “use-by” dates. 
2. Each customer is provided with a copy of a consumer warning statement that includes: 

a. Safe final cooking temperatures for raw animal foods; 
b. Instructions on how to use provided temperature monitoring devices; 
c. The physical hazards associated with using the equipment; and 
d. A consumer warning for the consumption of animal foods that are raw or 

undercooked consistent with Section 050.360 of the Regulations of the Washoe 
County District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. 

3. A copy of the sales receipt for each food item brought in by the customer is provided to 
Pignic Pub & Patio and is made available for review by WCHD staff upon request and 
held for at least six (6) months. 

4. Pignic Pub & Patio will verify the foods brought in by customers are held at proper 
holding temperatures according to Section 050.310 of the Washoe County District Board 
of Health Regulations Governing Food Establishments. 

5. Customers only prepare, cook, or baste food for their own consumption or for 
consumption by those in their party.  Customers shall not share any food products, 
equipment, or utensils with other customers/parties. 

6. A person-in-charge will be present at all times when customers are cooking to ensure: 
a. Each kitchenette, barbecue, and equipment used by customers is cleaned and 

sanitized between customers/parties; 
b. All utensils and equipment provided to customers is washed, rinsed, and sanitized 

inside the facility kitchen between each customer/party; and 
c. Each kitchenette and barbecue is inspected by Pignic Pub & Patio staff between 

customers/parties and all left over foods or condiments are removed and discarded. 
7. No changes to the foodservice operations are allowed without prior approval from the 

Health Authority. 
8. Pignic Pub & Patio must be in full compliance with all conditions at all times.  Failure to 

maintain compliance may result in the revocation of the variance at which time full 
compliance with Sections 200.055(B), 200.055(E), and 060.205(A) will be required. 

In addition to needing a variance to conduct proposed foodservice operations at their facility, 
Pignic Pub & Patio must have an outdoor food establishment permit that has been issued by the 
Health District as well as an operational plan approved by the Health District.  The Health 
District will require that the conditions noted above be addressed as a component of the 
operational plan. 

Alternatives: 
1. The Hearing Board members can recommend that the District Health Officer approve the 

variance under modified conditions (this can include conditions other than or in addition 
to those recommended by staff). 

2. The Hearing Board members can recommend that the District Health Officer deny a 
variance request. 

Possible Motion: 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to 
recommend that the District Health Officer approve Pignic Pub & Patio’s variance request 
providing Pignic Pub & Patio comply with conditions 1 - 8 as presented in this staff report.” 


















































































































































































































































	Agenda
	6. Approval of Draft Minutes
	November 2, 2016

	7. Variance Request, Pignic Pub & Grill
	Staff Report
	10/2014 Application for Permit and Inspections
	2015 Health Inspection
	2016 Health Inspections
	2016 City of Reno CDD Letter
	2017, Feb & Mar Inspection Reports
	2/23/17 Inspection Photos

	3/28/17 Invoice for Reinspection
	Procedures
	2017, Apr Inspection Reports
	4/13/17 Invoice for Reinspection
	10/8/17 Inspection Report
	Violations and Corrective Actions
	General Operational Plan
	10/18/17 Inspection Report
	11/17/17 Inspection Report
	11/17/17 Inspection Photos

	11/17/17 Permit Suspension Letter
	Statement of Proposed Variance




